
BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S MEETING 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 - AGENDA 
3:00 PM 

Room 5 Harrigan Centennial Hall/Zoom Meeting 

Regular Meeting 3:00 PM 

Item Action 

A. Call to Order Acknowledge  

B. Roll Call Acknowledge 

C. Review of Minutes Motion to Approve 

JUNE 22ND, 2020

D. Correspondence & Other Information Acknowledge/Questions 

E. Changes/Additions/Deletions to Agenda Change/Add/Delete 

F. Reports

G. Persons To Be Heard

H. Unfinished Business

1. GPIP Waterfront Development/Haul Out Discussion/Recommendation 

I. New Business

1. Delta Western Fuel Sales Proposal Discussion/Recommendation 
2. Sitka Salmon Shares Proposal Discussion/Recommendation 

J. Adjournment

EXECUTIVE SESSION POTENTIAL 

The Mission 

It is the mission of the Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board and management, by direction of the 
Sitka Assembly, to strategically develop the park in a fiscally responsible manner that maximizes its 

economic benefit to the community through creation of meaningful jobs in conformance with 
established community plans and policies. 



Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board Meeting 
June 22, 2020 

pg. 1 

Gary Paxton Industrial Park – Board of Directors Meeting 
June 22, 2020 3:00pm –Harrigan Centennial Hall & Zoom Meeting 

DRAFT Meeting Minutes 

A. CALL TO ORDER:  The Chair, Scott Wagner, called the meeting to order at 3:00pm.

B. ROLL CALL

Members Present: Scott Wagner, Al Stevens, Mike Johnson, Sheila Finkenbinder 

Chair Wagner noted he would need to depart by 4:20 for a prior commitment if the meeting were not 
already adjourned; Member Finkenbinder agreed to act as Chair if necessary. 

Members Absent:    Vaughn Morrison

Staff Present:   Garry White

City Representatives: Thor Christianson (Assembly Liaison), John Leach (Administrator), Michael 
Harmon (Public Works Director) 

Others Present: Keith Perkins, Jeremy Serka, Marsh Skeele, Dan Cooper, John Welsh, and 
others present in person and via Zoom 

C. Review of Minutes – April 27, 2020

MOTION: M/S to approve the minutes of April 27, 2020 
ACTION: Motion PASSED 4/0 on a voice vote.

D. Correspondence & Other Information – None

E. Changes/Additions/Deletions to Agenda – None

F. Reports – Mr. White reported the dock at GPIP has had good use.  Every year dock use seems
to be growing. Mr. White reported he is still fielding bulk water calls.

G. Persons to Be Heard – None

H. Unfinished Business
1. Gary Paxton Industrial Park (GPIP) Waterfront Development/Haul Out Proposals
Mr. White provided a brief timeline review and updated GPIP Board members with the current
status of the project. The Assembly and Board put out an RFP to get private sector development
of the haul out at Gary Paxton Industrial Park. The RFP was released in March with an April
deadline. Two proposals were received.

Mr. White summarized how various changes from the original RFP to the proposal before the 
GPIP Board came about.  When the RFP was originally put out it asked for a conceptual level 
operation plans with conceptual level drop layouts and everything else. After listening to all the 
public comments that came in during the RFP process at the GPIP and the Assembly meetings, 
the group decided to pivot from a ramp type of operation to a travel lift sling operation.  

Mr. White stated it is important to note that at the same time as the negotiating team was going 
through this process, the City and Borough of Sitka applied for two grants: the US Build Grant for 
$8.2 million and the Port Infrastructure Development Program. So, two grant options currently 
exist as potential funding sources that didn’t exist in January.  The City scored well on the Build 
Grant with a date of September 15th for notification. All the members participating in the 
negotiations would like to stand by to see if the City is awarded the grant, which would allow the 



Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board Meeting 
June 22, 2020 

pg. 2 

City to put in necessary infrastructure.  SIMS would then buy their own piece of machinery and 
operate it for the City.  

Mr. White introduced Dan Cooper of SIMS, who provided a power point presentation with the 
proposal of the new plan developed. 

Chair Wagner invited members of the public to come forward. 

Mike Narco, a local contractor in the boat business, asked for clarification: is the RFP still open?  
Mr. White replied the RFP is closed. The negotiating team is still engaged in the process with the 
proposal selected.  Mr. Narco stated there are several entities, his own business included, that 
would have bid on the RFP if it had been known that grant funding to the City for infrastructure 
was an option.  He advocated for re-opening the RFP process.  

Jeremy Serka addressed the timing of the consideration of the proposal – he observed most of 
the fleet is out fishing or getting ready to fish and are not aware the proposal is before the Board 
on this date.  

Baker Hensley, whom identified himself as the other person to submit a proposal as Sitka Sound 
Industrial (SSI). He stated his concerns: the proposals were submitted based on timelines and 
guidelines, which began in February 2020, prior to COVID-19. Mr. Hensley cited similarities to his 
proposal.   

Chris Hansen, whom identified himself as a commercial fisherman in Sitka, stated the Sitka 
fishing fleet is in its busy season and was against decisions being made at this time for that 
reason.  

Mr. Johnson reported he spoke with Chris McGraw.  As of Friday (June 19, 2020), Halibut Point 
Marine will stop hauling boats in June of 2021. 

Chair Wagner called for more comments from the public. Hearing none, he noted the GPIP Board 
heard from both the public and staff. Chair Wagner asked the Board if they had any questions. 

Chair Wagner asked City Administrator John Leach if the RFP process is being followed.  Mr. 
Leach confirmed staff had the legal department review the proposal. The RFP was purposely left 
open where it stated the City had a desired outcome of what it is looking for without specifying 
how the City would arrive at the desired outcome.  

Administrator Leach affirmed the grant opportunity was not known when the RFP went out. As far 
as the financing piece of the proposal with the grant, it allows the City to NOT loan money to the 
operator.  The original proposal requested a $1.5 million loan that with the grant opportunity has 
been reduced to a $375,000 max loan with lease credits for performance. 

The Administrator was asked how could it hurt the City to wait until the outcome of the grant is 
known. Administrator Leach stated it would slow the project and it would be unlikely that boats 
could be hauled by next summer. Administrator Leach noted both bidders requested some sort of 
financing assistance to move the project forward. Grant funds would definitely help the City in that 
respect.  Waiting for the outcome of the grant runs a risk of losing the interest of any of the 
proposals. 

GPIP Board member Mike Johnson acknowledged concerns about the timing and the absence of 
individuals from the fishing fleet at this meeting. This was not intentional, simply the timeline that 
has played out.  It is unfortunate that it is the busiest part of the fishing season.  The level of 
urgency for a haul out to be ready for the fleet in 2021 has not diminished, however. Halibut Point 



Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board Meeting 
June 22, 2020 

pg. 3 

Marine has given a firm ending date of June 2021.  Further, it would be unfair to put out another 
RFP since everyone’s ideas have been laid out for everyone to use. 

Chair Wagner confirmed with Mr. White that the proposal in front the GPIP Board, if approved, 
would go before the Assembly and then return to the GPIP Board for a final agreement through 
the same process, likely after the fishing season in late September or early October.  Chair 
Wagner requested the City Attorney write an opinion to support whatever decision the GPIP 
Board makes, so the Assembly has the legal opinion in hand for their consideration, since 
members of the public expressed several concerns about the process at this meeting. 

Chair Wagner asked if tide lands will also be leased. Mr. White stated tide lands lease hasn’t 
been discussed.  Chair Wagner recommended public access to tide lands through an easement. 

GPIP Board member Sheila Finkenbinder stated she agreed with the comments of fellow Board 
member Mike Johnson.  Ms. Finkenbinder further stated her view that the proposal brought 
forward by SIMS was quite a bit more comprehensive and detailed than the Baker proposal.   

Mr. White reviewed the process when the GPIP Board scored the proposals.  The SIMS proposal 
received the highest points. The GPIP Board voted on what was scored in the original proposals. 
That is where the conversation for negotiations began. 

Regarding the uplands lease of the ramp, there is precedent for this.  The GPIP Board gave 
Silver Bay and Northland Seafoods some ramp-up spots in order for the businesses to be 
successful. The goal of GPIP is to allow businesses to be successful and to put people back to 
work. 

Thor Christianson, Assembly Liaison, stated he didn’t have any problem with the lease ramp-up. 
He felt either proposal would receive that consideration.  His concern is that everything is 
contingent on the grant.   

Ms. Finkenbinder asked the SIMS representatives for their response were the matter tabled, 
pending the outcome of the grant. He and his partner would like to move forward with this. 
Because the grant is an integral part of moving forward, they are willing to wait for the outcome of 
the grant.   

GPIP Board Member Al Stevens agreed with Assembly Liaison Christianson that everyone is 
waiting on the grant. Mr. Stevens favors waiting to see what happens with the grant. 

Mr. White asked Mr. Cooper if the SIMS proposal could move forward if the grant was not 
awarded. Mr. Cooper stated one of the ideas, because of the ramp condition, would necessitate 
moving to a slip style haul out and because of the infrastructure needed and it being on City land, 
SIMS would need help with that. 

Chair Wagner stated he is comfortable knowing whatever action is taken by the GPIP Board at 
this meeting, it is not a final going to the Assembly.  Chair Wagner would like the City Attorney to 
provide some direction to the Assembly on the legality of the RFP process and the transparency 
issue for the Assembly to consider. Mr. White and Mr. Leach provided options available to the 
GPIP Board at this juncture.  Staff will take the matter forward to the Assembly with the 
recommendation(s) of the GPIP Board. 

MOTION: M/S Finkenbinder/Stevens moved the GPIP Board accept the terms of the lease 
agreement, with the consideration that staff runs this by legal for any potential problems. 

ACTION: Motion PASSED 4/0 on a roll call vote. Mr. Morrison was absent. 



Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board Meeting 
June 22, 2020 

pg. 4 

I. New Business
1. Sitka Salmon Shares Proposal
Chair Wagner invited Mr. Marsh Skeele, Vice President of Sitka Salmon Shares, to present his
proposal for leasing dock space at Gary Paxton Industrial Park. Sitka Salmon Shares would like
to place a 40-foot container, a forklift and a crane boom truck at the dock during the summertime.
These would all be mobile, with the 40-foot container on a chassis so it could be moved out if
needed.
The closest comparative Mr. White could find are the GPIP’s monthly rate to store an 8’ x 12’
palette on the dock at $250/month.  Based on that, Mr. White estimated a couple of rates for the
40’ container and the truck, and stated Sitka Salmon Shares would still pay the moorage rates.
Sitka Salmon Shares would be agreeable to something close to the terms Mr. White is suggesting
at this meeting.

Chair Wagner excused himself and turned the remainder of the meeting over to Ms. Finkenbinder 
to preside as Acting Chair.   

Acting Chair Finkenbinder asked if someone from Sitka Salmon Shares would always be at the 
dock, or how mobile would the items be, just in case they do get in the way.  Marsh Skeele stated 
they would be used daily and someone from Sitka Salmon Shares could be called to move the 
boom truck and forklift if needed.  The container would be moved by an AML truck, so it would be 
less immediately mobile, but could be moved.  

Mr. Skeele noted the 40’ container would be a freezer container and would need electricity. Mr. 
White confirmed the electrical department would require it to have its own utility meter.  For a trial 
run this summer, however, it might be possible to work on figuring out the cost for a 40-foot 
refrigerated container to run continuously.  Sitka Salmon Shares will return to meet with the GPIP 
Board in the fall to discuss a longer-term lease. 

MOTION: M/S Stevens/Johnson moved to allow Sitka Salmon Shares to utilize the container with 
a movable crane on the dock from June to September 1 2020, with the payment of the 
dock space rent at $1,000 and for moorage and utilities. 

ACTION: Motion PASSED 3/0 on a roll call vote. Mr. Morrison and Mr. Wagner were absent. 

2. Block 4, Lot 1 Potential Sale Discussion
Mr. White introduced this topic, noting he has been approached by someone wanting to purchase
the lot, which is the property across the river that used to be the Sawmill Farm.  If sold, the
property would have to be put out for competitive bid process. Mr. White would like to know if the
GPIP Board would like to put the property up for sale by a competitive bid process or not.

Mr. Welsh was invited to speak to the Board and identified himself as the person interested in 
purchasing the property. He presented his family’s interest to purchase the property. He asked 
the GPIP Board to send the matter to the Assembly to open the process for sale as he would like 
to offer a competitive cash deal to the City when the City is ready to move forward with the 
process of competitive bid. 

Acting Chair Finkenbinder summarized the question before the GPIP Board: to decide if they wish 
to begin a process to sell the property right now, or whether the GPIP Board would prefer to keep 
the property within the City’s and GPIP control so that it could potentially be used as a part of the 
Marine Services Center or something else that fits within an industrial park.   



Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board Meeting 
June 22, 2020 

pg. 5 

Acting Chair Finkenbinder invited questions from the Board.  Al Stevens asked staff how the 
various uses of the area (mountain bike path; Sawmill Farm) have been allowed given the dioxin 
buried in the area.  Mr. White stated GPIP had to obtain DEC approval. DEC has stated the 
property could be sold and the liability could be passed on to the new owner.  However, 
challenges to that need to be looked into carefully so that the liability wouldn’t fall back on the City 
if the new property owner was no longer viable.   

Mr. Leach stated there have been a lot of email communications with DEC on the matter.  Mr. 
Leach read from Sitka General Code on Competitive Bidding and the sale of City property.  It is 
very clear that property must be disposed of by competitive bid, unless there are special 
circumstances.  Mr. Welsh is suggesting this property might have special circumstances because 
of the condition of the dioxin cap.  Mr. White noted the City must monitor the site until 2097, 
unless the City can pass along some of that liability. 

Mr. Welsh stated that in his opinion the property is not suitable for industrial use.  

GPIP Board members stated their initial responses.  Ms. Finkenbinder is against selling. 

Assembly Liaison Christianson is against selling. 

Mr. Welsh stated he is amenable to a lease, and making a substantial contribution to it upfront. 

GPIP Board Member Johnson pondered what industrial purpose it could possibly have and 
knowing what is underneath the ground, what level of liability could the City divest itself of by 
transferring ownership and getting the property on the tax rolls. 

Al Stevens asked if it were possible to lease at this time.  Mr. White stated a lease cannot be 
discussed at this meeting because that topic hasn’t been given public notice for this meeting. 
Only the topic of the sale of the property can be considered at this meeting. 

Acting Chair Finkenbinder asked for public comment on the sale of the property. 

Dan Cooper, with SIMS, would prefer not to see a parcel of property go up for sale that could 
potentially be used for part of the marine shipyard. 

Acting Chair Finkenbinder stated the matter of placing the property up for competitive bid sale 
died for lack of a motion. 

J. Adjournment:  Acting Chair Finkenbinder adjourned the meeting at 4:55 pm.



1 

329 Harbor Drive, Suite 212, Sitka, AK 99385 
Phone: 907-747-2660 

Tuesday, September 15, 2020 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  GPIP Board of Directors 

FROM: Garry White, Director 

SUBJECT: Gary Paxton Industrial Park (GPIP) Management Report 

1. GPIP Dock

The GPIP Dock is open for business.  The dock had a lot of traffic during the spring of
2019.  Most use was related to the commercial fishing fleet with vessel moving nets and
other fishing gear across the dock.

Security cameras were installed in April, which allows for better management and
tracking of use.

Next steps are to continue to monitor uses and adjust the Port Tariff to accommodate
users of the facility.  Additionally, prepayment or pay for use electric meters are being
investigating to allow for better management of electric use.  (05/06/2019)

The GPIP Dock continues to see a lot of use this summer.  (09/15/2020)

2. Marine Services Industries at the GPIP.

The CBS received a proposal from the owners of Halibut Point Marina (HPM) stating
that it will be reducing service within the next two years.  HPM additionally submitted a
proposal to the CBS to construct marine haul out infrastructure to include; haul out piers,
an EPA approved wash down pad with a water treatment facility, and a 100 ton lift.
HPM is requesting a trade of other CBS property to offset the cost of construction.  The
GPIP Board has been unable to secure funding for the construction of haul out
infrastructure to date.

The GPIP Board held a meeting on December 4th to discuss the proposed haul out
infrastructure.  Discussion from the public and board focused on travel lift capacity, pier
width, upland improvements needed, access, and future management.  The Board
recommended the Assembly move forward with negotiations with HPM for a facility that
has a new 100 tons lift, piers that are 26’ apart, infrastructure to include a float to help
vessel navigate into the lift, a larger or additional wash down pad be included, and that
infrastructure is added to allow people to exit vessels before being lifted.



2 

(12/9/2019) 

Halibut Point Marina has withdrew with its proposal to construct a vessel haul out at the 
GPIP in exchange for other CBS property due the CBS general code that requires CBS 
property to be disposed of via competitive bid.  The CBS Assembly and GPIP Board held 
a joint work session on January 30th to discuss next steps.  The CBS Assembly directed 
the CBS Administrator to prepare and release a RFP for private sector development of 
vessel haul out at the GPIP.  (02/10/2020) 

The GPIP Board met on Feb. 28th and approved a draft RFP for CBS Administration 
approval to be release to the public for private sector development of a vessel haul out at 
the GPIP.  (03/09/2020) 

The CBS received two proposals for development of a vessel haul out at the GPIP.  The 
GPIP Board met via Zoom on April 27th and vetted the proposals as part of a selection 
committee, containing the 5 members of the Board, the CBS Administrator and Public 
Works Director.  The Selection Committee scored a proposal from WC Enterprises as the 
best proposal.  The RFP Scoring results were presented to the Assembly on May 12th.  
The Assembly gave direction to the CBS Administrator to work with WC Enterprises to 
develop a detailed agreement to move forward with the development of the haul out.  The 
CBS Administrator, Public Works Director, and the GPIP Director have been meeting 
twice a week with WC Enterprises on the agreement.  (06/01/2020) 

The CBS Assembly rejected the proposal by WC Enterprises due to substantial changes 
to WC request for financial support.  The CBS is working on conceptual plans and design 
for a haul out at the GPIP.  (09/15/2020) 

3. Bulk Water

The Director continues to work with entities interested in the export of Sitka’s water.
(05/06/2019)

The CBS Assembly met on April 30th to discuss needed repairs to the Raw Water
delivery infrastructure.  No funding or repair plan was determined.  The CBS’s ability to
delivery water will need to be fixed before the bulk water export venture can move
forward.  The Assembly directed the GPIP Director to continue to work with potential
investors and exports to find a funding solution to repair the system.  The CBS does not
believe that the infrastructure can be repaired until the penstock is shut down and
dewatered.  Estimate timeframe for penstock shut down is estimated to be the fall of
2021.  (06/03/2019)

The Director continues to receive inquiries from entities wishes to export Sitka’s water.
(09/15/2020)

4. Bottled Water

The Director continues to receive inquires for bottled water.  The Director has recently
had conversations with entities from China, Costa Rica, and South Korea. (11/12/2019)

5. Blue Lake Dam Expansion Project



3 

The Assembly has approved a MOA between the GPIP and Electric Department to allow 
the GPIP to charge for use of Lots 16b and 20. Rock has been stored on these lots since 
the Blue Lake Dam Expansion project. (06/03/2019) 

6. GPIP Dock Fuel Sales

Delta Western has received its build permit to establish a fueling operation on the GPIP
Dock.  The fuel tanks will be relocated from the dock itself to the uplands above the
dock.  (07/03/2019)

Delta Western has completed its fuel delivery infrastructure on the GPIP dock.
(11/12/2019)



Wednesday, September 16, 2020 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Gary Paxton Industrial Park (GPIP) Board of Directors 

From: Garry White, GPIP Director 

Subject: GPIP Waterfront Development/Haul Out 

Introduction 
The CBS and GPIP Board are working on conceptual plans and design for a haul out at the 
GPIP. 

The CBS and GPIP Board have taken multiple steps over the past few years to develop a marine 
haul out at the GPIP properties.  Please see the background information below. 

Most recently, the Assembly gave direction to continue to work on basis of design of a haul out 
and to wait for the USDOT Build Grant funding decisions.  It appears that the CBS will not be a 
recipient of a 2020 USDOT Build Grant.  Funding for the haul out development needs to be 
identified. 

The GPIP Board would like to continue the discussion on conceptual planning and basis for 
design for a haul out.   

Community Discussion on the development of a marine haul out at the GPIP need to include the 
following: 

• Funding for the development,
• Ownership and operation of haul out facility,
• Physical Infrastructure to haul and support vessels,
• Equipment type and capacity,
• GPIP property available for haul out operations and trades support.

Background 
The GPIP Board has long recognized the importance of the fishing and maritime industry to the 
community of Sitka.  The GPIP Board and CBS have been working on vessel haul out 
development concepts since the GPIP properties were acquired.   

The public announcement in the fall of 2019, that Halibut Point Marina (HPM) will cease public 
haul out operations in the next few years has intensified the priority of establishing a marine haul 
out facility at the GPIP.   

329 Harbor Drive, Suite 202 
Sitka, AK 99835 
Phone: 907-747-2660 



The GPIP Board and Assembly held a joint work session on January 30th, 2020 to discuss 
different concept regarding; ownership of facility and operations, infrastructure needed to 
support the fleet, and funding for the haul out construction and operations (Memo Attached).  
The Assembly gave direction to develop a RFP to investigate private ownership and operations 
of a haul out.   
The GPIP Board met on February 27th, 2020 to recommend approval of the RFP.  The CBS 
Assembly met on March 10th, 2020 and approved the RFP for release.  On March 11th, 2020, the 
City and Borough of Sitka (CBS) released a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Construction and 
Operation of a Marine Haul Out and Shipyard.  The RFP was open until April 15th, 2020.  The 
CBS received two proposals from the RFP process.  

The GPIP Board met on April 27th to discuss and score both proposal as part of the CBS RFP 
Selection Committee.  The CBS Selection Committee scored the proposal from WC 
Enterprises/SIMS with the highest score.  The CBS Assembly accepted the GPIP Board’s 
recommendation to move forward with negotiating terms to move forward on a haul out at the 
GPIP with WC/SIMS at its May 12th, 2020 meeting. 

At its May 12th, 2020 meeting, the Assembly additionally approved the CBS to apply for a 
USDOT Build Grant in the amount of $6,539,000 with a 20% CBS match commitment of 
$1,634,600 for a total project cost of $8,200,000 for the development and construction of a haul 
out at the GPIP. 

The CBS negotiation team consisting of the CBS Administrator, CBS Public Works Director, 
and the GPIP Director met multiple times in May and June with the WC/SIMS’ principal 
owners.  After considering all available information, listening to public stakeholder comments, 
and investigating more in-depth on the financial costs to move forward with a proposal; 
WC/SIMS concluded that the associated costs to complete a haul would require a larger financial 
subsidy from the CBS.  A modified proposal was brought to the Assembly.  The CBS Assembly 
rejected the modified proposal by WC Enterprises due to substantial changes to WC request for 
financial support.  The Assembly gave direction to continue to work on basis of design of a haul 
out and to wait for the USDOT Build Grant funding decisions. 

On August 11, 2020, The CBS Assembly approved a $100,000 budget from the Economic 
Development Fund to support specialized consultant services for the technical analysis and 
design related to the development of the haul out basis of design and RFP. 

Action 

• GPIP Board and public discussion on haul out conceptual plan and basis of design.



Thursday, January 23, 2020 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Gary Paxton Industrial Park Board of Directors & 
Hugh Bevan, Interim CBS Administrator 

From: Garry White, GPIP Director 

Subject: GPIP Vessel Haul-Out Facility Discussion 

Introduction 
The GPIP Board has long recognized the importance of the fishing and maritime industry to the 
community of Sitka.   

The GPIP Board and CBS have been working on vessel haul out development concepts since the 
GPIP properties were acquired.  Please see the attached GPIP Port Facility Overview 
Memorandum for background and more information on past efforts.   

Most recently, the GPIP Board has worked with the community and an outside engineering firm 
on concepts to construct an access ramp for vessel haul outs using either hydraulic trailers or 
amphibious marine travel lifts. 

The public announcement in the fall of 2019, that Halibut Point Marina (HPM) will cease public 
haul out operations in the next few years has intensified the priority of establishing a marine haul 
out facility at the GPIP.  The CBS received a proposal from HPM to build infrastructure to 
support the establishment of a vessel haul out at the GPIP in November 2019. 

The GPIP Board met on December 4th, 2019 to discuss overall GPIP Waterfront Development 
and the proposal from HPM.  The GPIP Board did not discuss the merits of the entire HPM 
proposals, but rather focused on what infrastructure is needed to support the fleet in a vessel haul 
out.  (Draft minutes from 12/4/2019 GPIP meeting attached) 

HPM has since withdrew its proposal.  The GPIP Board, CBS, and community are now working 
towards the development of a vessel haul out facility at the GPIP properties.  Much discussion on 
how to best service the local fleet and create an economic driver at the GPIP has taken place on 
the following: 

• Ownership of facility and operations:
o CBS owned and operated marine services facility
o CBS owned infrastructure/ Multiple Private operators
o Private owned and operated

 CBS enters into a DBFOM (Design- Building – Finance – Operate –
Maintain) agreement with a third party for the haul out construction and
operation.

329 Harbor Drive, Suite 202 
Sitka, AK 99835 
Phone: 907-747-2660 



• Infrastructure needed to support the fleet:
o Physical infrastructure
o Equipment

 What lifting capacity is needed

• Funding for the haul out construction and operations :
o Grant funds
o CBS Borrowing
o Selling or trading CBS property to acquire funds
o Private Sector investment

Ownership of facility and Operation Options 
There are multiple options for the CBS to consider for ownership of a haul out facility and 
operations of the facility. 

1. CBS Owned and Operated haul out facility
• CBS would design, build, fund, operate, and maintain the haul out.

The estimate costs for the CBS to fund the construction of a vessel haul out with an 
Access Ramp is $7,574,391 (2019 PND Engineering estimate).  The GPIP Board looked 
at developing the haul out facility in phases.  The GPIP Board set the following priorities: 

1. EPA approved water treatment infrastructure - $461,378
2. EPA approved wash down pad or water collection infrastructure - $399,035
3. Ramp infrastructure improvements, including installing a concrete ramp -

$1,946,284
4. Upland improvements (Electric, water, lighting, etc) - $2,579,463
5. Timber float - $910,831
6. CBS owned infrastructure to haul vessel (Hydraulic trailer or lift) - $1,277,400

Financial estimate of borrowing funds 
If the CBS chooses to borrow the ~$7.5 million dollars, an estimated, back of the napkin, 
financing repayment is as follows: 

$7.5 million dollars borrowed at a rate of 5.5% (75 basis points over current prime) for 20 
year term = $619,098 in annual debt service. 

CBS Operations 
The following numbers are a back of the napkin analysis if the CBS chooses to operate a 
vessel haul with CBS employees. 

• The numbers below only consider direct financials of the haul out operations and
not the other economic benefits of a haul out to the community.

Potential Haul out Revenue

• The 2014 planning document titled the “Preliminary Screening-Level Feasibility
Assessment and Planning for a Marine Center at Sawmill Cove Industrial Park”,
prepared by Northern Economics for the CBS suggests estimate annual haul out
revenues at $90,700.
(*Rate is based on $10-12 per foot for round trip haul out)



• The GPIP Director contacted HPM and obtained historic haul out revenues for
their operation.  Average recent haul out revenues are ~$165,000 annually. (*Rate
is based on $18 per foot for round trip haul out)

Potential Yard/Storage Revenue

• The GPIP Director contacted HPM and obtained historic yard/storage revenues
for their operation.  Average recent yard/storage revenues are ~$91,000 annually

Estimate Operational Expense
(*Note: The following estimates were based off actual expense numbers provided
by HPM)

Payroll Expense (Equipment operator and helper) $160,000
Repairs/Maintenance (Equipment) $20,000 
Yard Maintenance $5,000 
Fuel  $25,000 
Electrical $20,000 
Liability Insurance $24,000 
Property Insurance $14,000 
Garbage $15,000 
Total $283,000 

Cash Flow 

Based off the above, back of the napkin analysis, the CBS would lose $27,000 
annually operating the haul out.   

Total estimate Revenue $256,000 ($165k + $91k) 
Total estimate Expense $283,000 
Cash Flow -$27,000 

Total estimated annual subsidy required = $646,098 (Debt service + operational 
costs) 

2. CBS owned haul out facility/Multiple Operator
• CBS would design, build, fund, operate, and maintain the haul out.
• CBS would enter into agreements with private operators to provide haul out

services.
o A RFP could be used to select operator(s).
o A tariff schedule or lease agreements would be developed to assess

charges for use of CBS facilities and property.

The Estimate cost for the CBS to fund the construction of a vessel haul out with an 
Access Ramp is $6,296,991 (2019 PND Engineering estimate minus cost of equipment to 
haul vessels).  Private operators would be responsible for providing their own equipment 
to haul vessels.   

Financial estimate to borrowing funds 



If the CBS chooses to borrow the ~$6.3 million dollars, an estimated back of the napkin 
financing repayment is as follows: 

$6.3 million dollars borrowed at a rate of 5.5% (75 basis points over current prime) for 20 
year term = $520,042 in annual debt service. 

CBS Operations 
There are multiple options for entering into agreements with potential operators of the 
haul out to determine potential revenue and expense estimates. 

3. Private Owner and Operated
o CBS enters into a DBFOM (Design- Building – Finance – Operate – Maintain)

agreement with a third party for the haul out.
• The CBS would enter into a lease agreement or sell property to a private

entity, which would construct and operate the haul out.
o A RFP would be used to select the private entity.

Financial estimate 
• The numbers below only consider direct financials of leasing property for a

haul out and not the other economic benefits of a haul out on the community.

Under this option the CBS would receive lease revenue for the property leased to private 
entity. 

Potential lease revenue 
(*Note: Estimate based off 2018 Assessed values considering a 4.5% return on asset) 

Lot Value Potential Annual Lease Revenue 
Lot 6 $255,200 $11,484 
Lot 7 $188,100 $8,465 
Lot 8 $199,400 $8,973 
44k SF Lot 9a $352,000 $15,840 
Lot 9b  $43,500 $1,958 
Lot 15   $509,700 $22,937 
Total $1,547,900 $69,657 

Conclusion: 
If the CBS chooses to fund the construction of the haul out infrastructure there will need to be a 
substantial subsidy.  Grant funds are still being investigated with the Federal and State 
delegations and other agencies.  A private owned and operated haul out facility provides minimal 
cash flow to the CBS but allows the venture to move forward without a CBS subsidy. 

Infrastructure needed to support the fleet 
The GPIP Board has held multiple meetings throughout the years to determine the best 
infrastructure to construct at the GPIP to support the fleet and create an economic driver for the 
community.  Multiple site locations, physical infrastructure (access ramp vs travel lift piers), and 
lift capacities have been discussed.  The EPA approved water treatment facility, water collection 
infrastructure, and upland utilities will be needed for a functional haul out regardless of the 
infrastructure constructed to remove vessels from the water.  Direction needs to be finalized on 
which method to lift vessels from the water  and lift capacity for phase I of the development of 
the GPIP Marine Service Center.   



The CBS currently has a functional gravel access ramp located on the northern portion of Lot 9a 
at the park.  The access ramp was funded and constructed in 2017 by Northline Seafoods.  
Northline Seafoods successfully hauled its barge for retrofitting, creating multiple new jobs at 
the GPIP.  Northline Seafoods has stated that it wishes to continue to utilize the access ramp for 
future barge projects.  The access ramp needs additional improvements to be used for public 
vessel haul outs. 

The Board had a robust discussion with around 50 members of the local fleet at its December 4th, 
2019 meeting and came to the conclusion that the proposed infrastructure by HPM would meet 
most of the fleet’s needs.   

The HPM proposal consisted of travel lift piers with a width of at least 26’, a 100 ton travel lift.  
The site location was on the southern end of Lot 9a and did not interfere with operations of the 
current access ramp. 

Since, the December 4th, 2019, the GPIP Director has had multiple meetings with various 
members of the local fleet on various locations, vessel lifting infrastructure, and lift capacity for 
a future haul out operation.   

Potential Haul out site locations/Physical Infrastructure 
1. Northern End of Park (Water Access Easement Area).

o Conceptual design focuses on travel lift piers
o The GPIP Board discussed constructing travel lift piers in the water access

easement located between Lots 2 & 4.  (See attached map)
• Water depths have come into questions on this site.

(*Note: Travel lift piers could be angled toward deeper water) 

Benefits of this site 
• Close to current access ramp.

o EPA wash down infrastructure could be centrally located.
• Located near proposed upland haul out yard and infrastructure.

Cons of site 
• Potential water depth issues.

2. Current Access Ramp location (Lot 9a)
o The GPIP Board has focused on this site in the summer of 2018.  The 2019 PND

Engineer’s number are related to this site. (See attached map)

Benefits of this site 
• Demonstrated success of hauling barges at this location

o No additional improvements needed to continue to haul barges.
• Current angle of ramp of 8% is consistent with suggested ramp angle

presented by PND Engineers.
• Located near proposed upland haul out yard and infrastructure
• Allows for use of both hydraulic trailers and amphibious travel lifts

Cons of site 
• Potential water depth issues for haul vessels (more investigation needed)



3. Southern end of Lot 9a (near GPIP Dock)
o Conceptual design focuses on travel lift piers
o This site was proposed by HPM.

Benefits of this site 
• Water column is good.
• Travel lift piers are in line with prevailing winds
• Close to covered work area (Former bottling plant building)

Cons of site 
• Potential congestion issues with GPIP Dock.
• Existing infrastructure would need to be moved

Equipment/Lifting Capacity  
There are multiple options for lifting vessel out of the water that other communities have used at 
vessel haul outs.   

(*Note: HPM Marine Travel Lift is 88 ton) 



The GPIP Director has been in discussions with multiple groups on the use of various pieces of 
equipment to haul vessels and barges.  There are multiple benefits and cons for every piece of 
equipment.  

Equipment types 
There are multiple types of equipment to haul vessels.  The GPIP Director has only investigated 
marine travel lifts, amphibious travel lifts, and hydraulic trailers. 

1. Marine Travel Lifts
• Land based lifts that use travel lift piers to haul vessels.

Benefits 
• Travel lifts have traditionally been used in Sitka, fleet is more used to them.
• Equipment does not go into water, potential for less corrosion.

2. Amphibious Travel Lifts
• Travel lifts that use an access ramp to haul vessels.

Benefits 
 Used with access ramps



• Can share access ramps with hydraulic trailers.

Cons 
• Greater risk for corrosion
• Issues lining up vessel in windy conditions

3. Hydraulic Trailers
• Trailers that use an access ramp to haul vessels.

Benefits 
 Used with access ramps

• Can share access ramps with Amphibious travel lifts.

Cons 
• Greater risk for corrosion
• Issues lining up vessel in windy conditions

Lifting Capacity 
The GPIP Board at its Dec. 4th, 2019 meeting recommended moving forward with a 100 ton 
marine travel lift.   

• Lifts in the 45 ton to 100 ton capacity are lower cost and can accommodate a majority
of the local fleet.

• Lifts in the 150-300 ton range cost more, but can accommodate large vessels.
 Larger vessels tend to spend more on vessel projects and attract marine service

providers, creating more jobs.

Conclusion:  There are multiple options for site location, equipment type, and lift capacity.  
There are benefits and cons for each location, equipment, and lift capacity.   



Next Steps 

1. GPIP/Assembly direction of different ownership options.
• CBS ownership

• Where is funding coming from?
• Private Ownership

• What terms would the CBS like to include in DBFOM lease
agreement?

2. GPIP/Assembly direction on potential site location.
• Access ramp location.
• North end of park.
• South end of Lot 9a.
• Allow private industry to propose via RFP for any/all locations.

3. GPIP/Assembly direction on potential equipment and lift capacity.
• Traditional travel lift.
• Amphibious travel lift.
• Hydraulic trailer.
• Allow private industry to propose equipment and lift capacity via RFP

process.

4. Other GPIP/Assembly discussions
• Potential for short term goals to service fleet with phased development.



GPIP Vessel Haul Out Discussion
 Historic Efforts
 Funding for development
 Ownership/Operations Discussion
 Infrastructure Discussion

 Land/Location
 Equipment/Lift Capacity

 GPIP property available for haul out operations and trades support
 Other?













Marine Travel Lift Amphibious Travel Lift Hydraulic Trailer

Equipment Types





 
 
Monday, September 14, 2020 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Gary Paxton Industrial Park (GPIP) Board of Directors 
 
From:  Garry White, Director 
 
Subject: Delta Western Fuel Sales Proposal 
 
Introduction 
Delta Western has a Dock and Uplands Use Agreement with the CBS to sell fuel on the GPIP 
Dock.  2020 was the first summer of fuel sales by Delta Western at the GPIP Dock.  Delta 
Western would like to amend it “use agreement” to allow for additional customers other than the 
just Silver Bay Seafoods, which the current agreement only allows.  
 
Please see the attached request from Delta Western and Dock and Upland Use Agreement.   
 
Fuel Sale Revenues 
Dock fuel sale revenues are as follows: 
 
FY2019                   $243 
FY2020                  $5,014 
FY2021 to date  $5,104 
 
Additional Information 

• The current Port of Sitka Tariff Wharfage rate schedule lists the rate for moving fuel 
across the dock at $1.78/barrel of fuel or 42 gallons ($0.042/gallon).  Attached. 

 
• Item 170 of the Port of Sitka Tariff outlines the rules and regulations of moving Bulk 

Petroleum Products across the dock.  Attached. 
 

• Attached are parts of the Port of Sitka Tariff related to the transfer of Bulk Petroleum 
Transfers.  The entire Tariff can be found at 
http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.
27-12-2018FINAL.pdf 

 
Action 

• GPIP Board approval to amend existing Dock and Upland Use Agreement. 

329 Harbor Drive, Suite 212 
Sitka, AK 99835 
Phone: 907-747-2660 

http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.27-12-2018FINAL.pdf
http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.27-12-2018FINAL.pdf






























 
 
 
Tuesday, September 15, 2020 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Gary Paxton industrial Park (GPIP) Board of Directors  
 
From:   Garry White, Director 
 
Subject:  Sitka Salmon Shares Proposal 
 
Introduction 
 
Sitka Salmon Shares utilized portions of the GPIP dock this past summer to place a 40’ freezer 
container and a dock crane to assist in their fish buying operation.  Salmon Shares wishes to 
further increase its commercial operation on the GPIP Dock.  Please see the attached proposal 
from Salmon Shares. 
 
GPIP Dock 
 
The GPIP dock was opened for operation in the spring of 2018.  The GPIP dock is managed by 
the CBS Harbor Department.  Activity at the GPIP dock has increased substantially every year 
the facility has been open to the public for use. 
 
GPIP Dock Tariff Rates 
 
Rate for using the GPIP dock can be found on the CBS Harbor Department website. 
http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.39-4-
2018DRAFT-3.pdf 
 
Current the only published rates for storage of equipment on the GPIP dock are: 
 

 
 

329 Harbor Drive, Suite 212 
Sitka, AK 99835 
Phone: 907-747-2660 

http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.39-4-2018DRAFT-3.pdf
http://www.cityofsitka.com/government/departments/harbor/documents/MasterTariffNo.39-4-2018DRAFT-3.pdf


 
Additional Information 
 
• The Harbor Master has advised against a permanent monthly loss of moorage space as demand 
is high for the GPIP dock face. 
 
Action 
 

• GPIP Discussion of Sitka Salmon Shares Proposal. 
 




	Sept agenda 2020GPIP.pdf
	The Mission

	GPIP Mtg 6.22.2020 DRAFT Minutes.pdf
	sept2020Report (1).pdf
	GPIP Vessel Haul Out Facility Discussion Sept.pdf
	GPIP Vessel Haul Out Facility Discusssion (1).pdf
	GPIP Vessel Haul Out Discussion September.pdf
	GPIP Vessel Haul Out Discussion
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8

	Delta Western Fuel Sales Proposal.pdf
	19 Port tariff Fuel Item 001 (1).pdf
	signed and executed final user agreement (1).pdf
	Sitka Salmon Shares Proposal September.pdf
	Converted.pdf



